
 

  www.wincoil.us | Page 1  

 
REVISED 
AGENDA 

 
Winnebago County Courthouse 

400 West State Street | Rockford, IL 61101 
County Board Room | 8th Floor 

 
Thursday, September 6, 2018 

6:00 p.m.  
 

1. Call to Order  .................................................................................. Chairman Frank Haney 
 
2. Agenda Updates  ....................................................................................... Chairman Haney 
 
3. Roll Call ................................................................................................. Clerk Tiana McCall 
 
4. Invocation ............................................................................... Board Member Dave Kelley 
 
5. Awards, Proclamations, Presentations, Public Hearings, and Public Participation  

A. Awards – “Chairman’s Service Excellence Award” – Received by Nathan Pratt Jennings 
B. Proclamations – None 
C. Presentations – Mayor Jim Claeyssen, Village of Cherry Valley  

 
6. Public Comment ................................................................................. Registered Speakers 

Members of the public may address the Board by submitting their request no later than 2 hours prior 
to the start of the meeting. Contact www.wincoil.us or (815) 319-4225 for guidelines. 

 
7. Meeting Minutes ...................................................................................... Chairman Haney 

A. Approval of August 9, 2018 minutes 
B. Layover of August 23, 2018 minutes 
 

8. Announcements & Communications ............................................................... Clerk McCall 
A. Correspondence (see packet) 

 
9. Board Member Correspondence ............................................................... Board Members 
 

10. Chairman’s Report .................................................................................... Chairman Haney 
 

11. County Administrator’s Report ................................................. Administrator Carla Paschal 

http://www.wincoil.us/


www.wincoil.us | Page 2  

 
12. Approval of Consent Agenda ..................................................................... Chairman Haney 

A. Raffle Report  
 

13. Standing Committee Reports .................................................................... Chairman Haney 
 

A. Public Works Committee .............................................. Dave Kelley, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report 
2. (18-026) Resolution Authorizing the Execution of an Intergovernmental Agreement 

between the County of Winnebago and the Village of Cherry Valley for Traffic Signals 
at the New School Entrance on Perryville Road at the Intersection of Armer Drive 
(Section #16-00617-00-PV) 
Cost:  $00.00        C.B. District:  11 

 
B. Zoning Committee ...................................................... Jim Webster, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report  
 

C. Economic Development Committee .......................... Fred Wescott, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  
2. Resolution Authorizing Execution of an Economic Development Agreement with 

Bergstrom, Inc.      
 

D. Operations & Administrative Committee ......................... Gary Jury, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report   
2. Resolution Establishing the Date, Time, and Location of Each Meeting of the 

Winnebago County Board         
3. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute an 

Intergovernmental Agreement Forming and Empowering the Winnebago County 
Geographic and Information System (WinGIS) 

4. Resolution Authorizing the Chairman of the County Board to Execute a Cooperative 
Agreement Forming and Empowering the Rockford Metropolitan Agency for Planning 
 

E. Public Safety Committee…………………………………….. Dave Fiduccia, Committee Chairman 
1. Committee Report  

 
F. Finance Committee ....................................................... Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 

1. Committee Report 
2. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Cheryl Whipple Versus Winnebago County      
3. Resolution Authorizing Settlement of a Claim Against the County of Winnebago 

Entitled Timothy Hilton Versus Winnebago County          
4. Ordinance Authorizing the Issue of Not to Exceed $50,000,000 of General Obligation 

Bonds (alternate revenue source) of the County to Fund All or a Portion of the County’s 



www.wincoil.us | Page 3  

Unfunded IMRF Liability, Including Prepayment of, and Providing a Budget Stabilization 
Fund for, Such Liability to be Laid Over          

5. Budget Overview/Presentation Proposing the Fiscal Year 2019 County Budget 
6. Fiscal Year 2019 Budget to be Laid Over to the September 27, 2018 Meeting 
7. Fiscal Year 2019 Annual Appropriation Ordinance to be Laid Over to the September 27, 

2018 Meeting    
 

14. Unfinished Business .................................................................................. Chairman Haney 
 

15. New Business ............................................................................................ Chairman Haney 
 

A. Board Appointment(s) 
1. Cherry Valley Fire Protection:  William LeFevre, Cherry Valley, IL 61016, September 

2018 – May 2020 
2. Cherry Valley Cemetery Association:  Ryan Gordon, Rockford, IL 61108, September 

2018 – March 2020 
3. Howard Union Cemetery District:  Shirley Alberstett – Reappointment, Pecatonica, IL 

61063, June 2018 – June 2024 
 

16. Adjournment ............................................................................................ Chairman Haney 
 

Next Meetings:   
Thursday, September 20, 2018 – Meeting of the Whole 
Thursday, September 27, 2018 – County Board Meeting 





 

ANNOUNCEMENTS & 
COMMUNICATIONS 



 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

 
Announcements & Communications 
Date: September 6, 2018 
Item: Correspondence to the Board 
Prepared by: County Clerk Tiana McCall 
 

Governing Statute(s):  State of Illinois Counties Code 55 ILCS 5/Div. 3-2, Clerk 
 
County Code: Ch 2. Art. II. Div. 4, Sec. 2.86 – Record Keeping & Communications 
 
Background: The items listed below were received as correspondence.  
 
1. County Clerk McCall received from the United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission the 

following: 
 

a. Summary of August 8, 2018, Meeting with Exelon Generation Company, LLC, on a Future 
Relief Request to Extend the Post-Peening Follow up Inspections for Certain Reactor 
Pressure Vessel Head Penetrations (EPID L-2018-LRM-0045) 

 
b. Federal Register / Vol. 83, No. 167 / Tuesday, August 28, 2018 / Notices 
 
c. Byron Station, Unit NOS. 1and 2 – Individual Notice of Consideration of Issuance of 

Amendments to Renewed Facility Operating Licenses, Proposed no Significant Hazards 
Consideration Determination, and Opportunity for a Hearing (EPID L-2018-LLA-0218) 

 
d. Updated Inspection Plan for Byron Station, Units 1 and 2 (Report 05000454/2018005 and 

05000455/2018005) 
 
2. County Clerk McCall received from Charter Communications letters regarding changes in 

channel lineup for the following: 
 
 a. County of Winnebago 
 b. Township of Roscoe 
 c. Township of Harlem 
 d. Township of Rockton 
 
 
  

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs4.asp?DocName=005500050HDiv%2E+3-2&ActID=750&ChapterID=12&SeqStart=14400000&SeqEnd=16300000
https://library.municode.com/il/winnebago_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=COCO_CH2AD_ARTIICOBO_DIV4RUPR_S2-86RECO


 

County Clerk  |  404 Elm St, Rm 104, Rockford, IL 61101  |  www.wincoil.us 
Phone: (815) 319-4250  |  Fax: (815) 969-0259  |  Email: CountyClerk@wincoil.us 

 

3. County Clerk McCall received the following from Charter Communications Quarterly 
Franchise Fee Payment Notices for the following:  

 

 a. Town of Roscoe, IL 
 b. Town of Rockton, IL 
 c. Harlem, IL, Township 
 
 
4. County Clerk McCall received from ComEd a letter regarding the performance of 

vegetation management activities on distribution circuits in our area within the next few 
months.   

 
5. County Clerk McCall received from Illinois Environmental Protection a letter regarding 

Notice of Application for Permit to Manage Waste – Description of Project:  Annual 
groundwater management zone (GMZ) evaluation in accordance with Condition VII of 
Permit Modification No. 23 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Recommendation: The Winnebago County Clerk recommends that the correspondence listed be placed 
on file as a part of the County Board records maintained by the County Clerk.  
 
 

http://www.wincoil.us/
mailto:CountyClerk@wincoil.us


 

CHAIRMAN’S 
REPORT 



Monday, September 10th 

11:30 am—1:30 pm *Lunch will be provided 

Region 1 Planning Council Offices—Regional Design Center 

313 N Main Street, Rockford 

Northern Illinois Land Bank Information Session 

RSVP to Eric Setter at ESetter@r1planning.org by Sep. 6th, 2018 

Mayor Tom McNamara and Chairman Frank Haney are 
hosting Brent Denzin, land bank attorney, to discuss the 
benefits of creating a regional land bank.  Brent will 
provide an overview on best practices and strategies for a 
successful land bank. 

You are invited to join the conversation and provide input 
to help determine how the Northern Illinois Land Bank can 
best be utilized in our community.   



 

ADMINISTRATOR’S 
REPORT 



 

CONSENT 
AGENDA 







 

PUBLIC WORKS 
 COMMITTEE 





















 

ZONING 
 COMMITTEE 



Attachment 
 ZONING COMMITTEE  

OF THE COUNTY BOARD AGENDA 
 September 6, 2018  

 
  

PLANNING AND/OR ZONING REQUESTS:  NONE 

 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

1.    COMMITTEE REPORT (ANNOUNCEMENTS) - for informational purposes only; not  
            intended as a public notice): 

  
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 
 meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, September 12, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of 
 the County Administration Building. The following petitions are on the agenda for  
 consideration: 

   
 V-03-18 A Variation to Allow a Front Yard Setback of 15 Feet Instead of the Required Established 

Building Setback of 50 Feet in the CG, General Commercial District for property commonly known as 
14440 Dearborn Ave., South Beloit, IL 61080 in Roscoe Township, District 4. 

 V-04-18 A Variation to Waive the Required Number of Off-Street Parking Spaces (to Allow No Off-
Street Parking) for a Not-for-Profit Private Recreational Use Authorized by Special Use Permit in the 
RR, Rural Residential District for property commonly known as 916 & XXX Concord Ave., Rockford, 
IL, 61102 in Rockford Township, District 18. 

 V-05-18 A Variation to Allow a Front Yard Setback of 0 Feet Instead of the Required Min. Setback of 
30 Feet (and/or the Established Building Setback of 60 Feet) in the AG, Agricultural Priority District for 
property commonly known as 8612 Burr Oak Road, Roscoe, IL 61073 in Harlem Township, District 7. 

 SU-03-18 A Special Use Permit for a Wedding and/or Reception Facility in the AG, Agricultural Priority        
District for property commonly known as 3013 W. Rockton Road, Rockton, IL 61072 in Rockton 
Township, District 2. 

 
• Chairman, Brian Erickson, hereby also announces that a Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) 

meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 18, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of the 
County Administration Building. The following petition is on the agenda for  
consideration: 

 
 V-06-18 A Variation to Allow a Structure (Batch/Drum Plant with Accessory Components such as a 

Silo, Conveyor, etc.) to be 80 Feet in Height Instead of the Permitted Height of 50 Feet in the AG, 
Agricultural Priority District for property commonly known as 11200 N. Main Street, Rockton, IL 61072 
in Rockton Township, District 2. 

 
• Chairman, Jim Webster, hereby announces that the next Zoning Committee (ZC) meeting 

is tentatively scheduled for Wednesday, September 26, 2018, at 5:30 p.m. in Room 303 of 
the County Administration Building. 
 

 



 

ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT 

 COMMITTEE 



SPONSORED BY:  FRED WESCOTT 
           

RESOLUTION 
OF THE  

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

SUBMITTED BY: ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE 
      

 
2018 CR_______ 

 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH BERGSTROM, INC. 
 

 WHEREAS, the County is a duly organized and existing county created under the 
provisions of the laws of the State of Illinois, and is now operating under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Counties Code, as amended (55 ILCS 5/1 et seq.); and 
 
 WHEREAS, Section 5-1005(21) of the Counties Code  (55 ILCS 5/5-1005(21)) 
authorizes counties to appropriate and expend funds from the county treasury for economic 
development purposes, including the making of grants to any other governmental entity or 
commercial enterprise deemed necessary or desirable for the promotion of economic 
development in the county; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Bergstrom, a designer and manufacturer of cab climate systems for heavy-
duty commercial trucks, off-highway machines, and specialty vehicles is planning a $2.5 million 
expansion of its manufacturing operation at its world headquarters in Rockford, Illinois to build 
plastic housings for its heating, ventilation, and air conditioning components  (the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 20, 2018, the City Council of the City of Rockford, Illinois (the 
“City”), approved a development agreement with Bergstrom that provides $250,000 in 
Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) funds for Bergstrom’s purchase of industrial 
equipment contingent in part on Bergstrom creating 25 new, permanent full-time equivalent jobs 
in connection with the Project at Bergstrom’s facility at 5910 Falcon Drive in Rockford, Illinois; 
and    
 
 WHEREAS, the Project will create job opportunities and provide for economic 
development within the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County wishes to support the Project and, thereby, contribute to the 
economic growth within the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County wishes to pledge a portion of its Host Fee revenue in support of 
the Project; and 
 



 WHEREAS, there are compelling public interests in improving the health, welfare and 
quality of life of the County’s citizens and providing for economic development that supports 
local businesses and the creation of sustainable jobs. 
 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County Board of 
the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman is authorized to 
execute the Economic Development Agreement between the County of Winnebago and 
Bergstrom, Inc., in substantially the same form as that set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby directed to 
prepare and deliver copies of this resolution to the County Administrator, the County Chief 
Financial Officer, and the Director of Development Services. 
 
 

 Respectfully submitted, 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT  
COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE      DISAGREE 

 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Fred Wescott, Chairman    Fred Wescott, Chairman   
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
LC Wilson      LC Wilson 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dorothy Redd      Dorothy Redd 
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Jean Crosby      Jean Crosby  
 
_______________________________________   _______________________________________ 
Dave Fiduccia      Dave Fiduccia 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, this _____ day of ___________________, 2018. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Frank Haney 
       Chairman of the County Board 
       of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
Attested by: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Tiana J. McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 









































Bergstrom, Inc. Expansion Development 

Request for County from Host Fees  

FY-2019 
(Oct 1, 2018 –Sept 30, 2019) 

FY-2020 
(Oct 1, 2019 –Sept 30, 2020) 

2 Year Period 
TOTAL 

$125,000 $125,000 $250,000 
 
City of Rockford is investing $250,000 
TOTAL PROJECT COST (over) $2.5 million 

Bergstrom, Inc. 
https://us.bergstrominc.com/ 

• Bergstrom is a worldwide company, with locations around the world, ... 
o United States 

 Rockford, IL (1971) 
• 2390 Blackhawk Rd 
• 5910 Falcon Rd 

 Joliet, IL (1998) 
 San Antonio, Texas (2012) 

o Europe, United Kingdom 
 Ystrad Mynach, Wales (1995) 

o China 
 Changzhou, Jiangsu (approximately 90 miles northwest of Shanghai) (1998) 

o Spain 
 Madrid 

 

• Climate control (HVAC) industry for vehicles 
o Heavy Duty Trucking  Class 8 trucks, such as... 

 International, Mack, Kenworth, Peterbilt, Freightliner 
o Construction  HVAC cab systems for companies, such as... 

 Caterpillar & others 
o Agriculture 
o Bus & Specialty 

 Buses, recreational, commercial, & emergency vehicles 
o Military 
o Mining 
o Foundry 
o Offshore Drilling 
o Logging 
o Shipyard 
o Sport Fishing 
o Niche Automotive 

https://us.bergstrominc.com/


Bergstrom, Inc. Expansion Development 

• Funds are to be used for... 
o Asset transfer from San Antonio, Texas facility location 
o Acquisition of new plastic injection molding presses 
o Increased footprint of location (leased space) 
o Training 

 EMPLOYEES 
Bergstrom (Rockford) Employees 350 Current 

***Additional County Jobs Required  25 
(Agreement - to be added) 
 
20 – average wage $12.40/hr 

   Bergstrom (Rockford) Employees 57 Expected within 2 years 
 407 TOTAL 
 

 
EMPLOYEES 

POSITION 
(#) New Positions Transfer 

from Texas 

Material Handler 4 4   
Planner 1 1   
Press Operator 15 11 4 
Process Technician 2 0 2 
Production Supervisor 1 0 1 
Quality Inspector 1 1   
Plastic Engineer 1 1   
Tool Maker 1 1   

 26 
19 7 

 
26 

 



��������� ���	�

�����������������������������������������������������������������
������������ ��� !"#!"$%&!'()&*+(,+%$&*("+#!"%()-./('012/3 4���4564(+78-89(':1/ ;<�=>?��@�AB��(C8:80D E�?AF<(+78-89(%9G/ ���	��E?A�B (%9G/(HI( H3G ��@<>?A��;�E(&7JH3GH3:8-H7(,:8/K,H1/D8-JL �5��6��6�6 (C8:8/ A

AB�A>($M/78(':1/ �EFA�����N�<

 ($M/78( O:7M/(,:8/ �P��Q�����($M/78(C83//8($RR3/DD �46��;
E�STEUS��� (#3/D-R/78(':1/(V($RR3/DD W�;�>TE<���46�;
E�STEUS���E����S����5���6($M/78( -89 ���S��� (C/J3/8:39(':1/(V($RR3/DD W�
�WE�S>�B�>E@<($M/78(X-G 5���6 (,03:8-H7(,:8/ 	<�	<?YE
($770:.("/GH38()-.-7M,:8/ �P�4������ ()H3(Z/:3 ����(!.R( H3G(':1/ �6��5��66P���;<�=>?��@�@EBYE�?Y�AB=��������[����������>������>����� 	[������������\�������\�=��]�>���]�������K!7/( /38-I-J:8/(G/3(%3:7D:J8-H7L!%̂ +"(C+"_& +C����E��[���������E]�������E��[̀ �]�B�̀ �E���������\�È ��]̀ ����<\\�������E�B�̀ ����������������\����������]�E�������]�������������]��\\����E]]����� ;E�S�?���N;<���AF<A

AB�A>���@�T�@<�	E=<



��������� ����	
�����������	����	������	�������	������������������	�������� !����	����	�"#�����"�������	��$"�� �%��&'�(��)�)*+���� ���,-./0-1230452678592:;57<=;5;230452678592>=?5;@-<0;20A2B<<5<<45.C<92DEFGHIJKLFMN OFGHEPJQFRJSETFMPUJVWGJOFGHEPJXYZ[EGJ\]̂\_̂_̀âb\c2d-5e26;0?5;Cf2@-72,-.gh>d-5e26;0?5;Cf2>715<2i7C7j2>C;=/C=;712h.A0;47k0.2l2m=-1n-.8265;4-C23-<C0;f2@-72o0/pA0;n2:0e.<q-?B<<5<<0;2rPMHsJtEGEJTWJOFuJ[uJrGEvMTJrFGvJWGJwNPMNEJrIEHsJ2OPEFUEJHIWWUEJTIEJTFRJuEFGJuWYJxWYPvJPMsEJTWJyMExJvETFMPUJVWGz2{|}~ 2�������������������������������������������������22������������� ���������������m�B��3B,�26o�6 o:¡23��ih¢g>2��� m�B��3B,�26o�6 o:¡23��ih¢g>2����£�2iBdhi2o¡i �� �£�2iBdhi2o¡i ��{¤¥|2m�B��3B,�2o�Bi {¤¥|2m�B��3B,�2o�Bio���¦�oij2h�2§}}|¥ o���¦�oijh�2§}}|¥2̈̈̈¨̈̈�©����������������̈̈¨̈̈¨ ¨̈̈¨̈̈�ª�«���������������̈̈¨̈̈¨i=52i7C5¬2222§££{|} i=52i7C5¬2222¥£~£{|}2222B40=.C¬2222®|¥}̄¥® 2222B40=.C¬2222®|¥}̄¥®2222265.71Cf¬22222222|̄|| 2222265.71Cf¬22222222|̄||222222222�0<C¬22222222|̄|| 222222222�0<C¬22222222|̄||2:0C712i=5¬2222®|¥}̄¥® 2:0C712i=5¬2222®|¥}̄¥®67-n¬2222®|¥}̄¥®2222i7C5¬2222°£{¥£{|} 67-n¬2222222i7C5¬222mf¬222�0/p±0²2Cq;=2h11-.0-<2m7.p2l2:;=<C mf¬2222©������«����������³����́µ��¶·�̧¹º�»¹�¼½����̧��«¾�����½��«������ 2 ���¾��m07;n20A2o5@-5e2B<<5<<5n2d71=5 2 °°{®°°



��������� ����	
�����������	����	������	�������	������������������	�������� !����	����	�"#�����"�������	��$"�� �%��&'�(��)�)*+���� ���,-./01234567892:8;-/4<8=>-? @4 ABCCCCD-8?E4-F4GHI2H.4567892:HE4J897H K4 LLMNLLO-PH4QP3?-IHPH/>45@HP3;-/ R4 CS208T9HE4JH>H?8/45@HP3;-/ R4 CSH38?>PH/>4-F4GHIH/7H4U00H00HE4J897H K4 LLMNLLV-7/>W4X79;392H? @4 ABCCCCGHI20HE4567892:HE4J897H K4 LLMNLLYH/2-?4<?HH:H45@HP3;-/ R4 C<U<ZJU<45@HP3;-/ R4 C[./H?4[==732HE45@HP3;-/ R4 C[IH?4\L45@HP3;-/ R4 C]H.4S208T9HE4-?4JH>H?8/45@HP3;-/ R4 CGH>7?/2/̂4JH>H?8/45@HP3;-/ R4 C,8@8T9H4J897H K4 LLMNLL,8@4G8>H4F-?4,8@4V-EH44CCA @4 ANB_̀\̀V89=798>HE4,8@ K4 a_Ab\̀B__]-/4UE4J89-?HP4R c4 aCBCCUT8>HPH/>0 R4 aCBCC,[,Ud4,Ue4Sf5g K4 a_Ab\̀B__hijklmiknoplqirsotlll4A\LuL̀C vwxxlyzsirj{o|lqirsotlll4C}i~j��l��|jo�li�|l�ipo�}i~j��l��|� �ipo }i~�Q]]5DU�[4V[f],� ABCL_u aL_N_B_M<[G5Y,4�G5Y5GJ5 CBAA_M a\L̀BCCG[V�<[GS4,[�]YOQ� CBANN\ aub_B_LG[V�<[GS4VQ,� B̀MLAu aAub\NBA_G[V�<[GS4�UG�4SQY,GQV, ABÀuA a\M_ABbuG[V�4GQJ5G4�U,5G4G5V CBMCNC aAAMuBCAG[V�<[GS4VQ,�4dQDGUG� CBLCbA aM_AMBLL�G5U,5G4G�<S4UQG�[G, CBAACM a\C_B_AG[V�<[GS4YVO[[d4SQY,4MCL uB\Nb\ aNMM\CB\CV[XXf]Q,�4V[dd5�54LAA CBLCL̀ aMubABL\G[V�<[GS4,�Y�4G[US CBANu_ a_A\BL̀��������ly�|l��l�oirly�pipol}i~l����k�i���l��������4,-34-F4�8̂H44YH8?=14Û82/



 

OPERATIONS & 
ADMINISTRATIVE 

 COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by: Gary Jury, Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2018 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Operations & Administrative Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME, AND LOCATION  
OF EACH MEETING OF THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY BOARD 

 

 
WHEREAS, under provisions of Illinois Revised Statues, Chapter 102, Section 42.02, the 

County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois is required to provide public notice of the date, 
time, and location of its regularly scheduled meetings; and, 
 

WHEREAS, the County Board of the County of Winnebago is required to hold regular 
meetings during the months of June and September and may hold additional regular meetings at 
such times as may be determined. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of Winnebago, 
Illinois that the Board shall conduct its regular meetings on the 2nd and 4th Thursdays of each 
month of Fiscal Year 2019 at 6:00 o’clock pm, except as indicated hereunder (**): 

 
October 11, 2018  April 11, 2019 
October 25, 2018  April 25, 2019 
   
November 8, 2018  May 9, 2019 
November 20, 2018 (Tuesday)**  May 23, 2019 
   
December 13, 2018  June 13, 2019  
  June 27, 2019 
   
January 10, 2019  July 11, 2019  
January 24, 2019  July 25, 2019 
   
February 14, 2019  August 8, 2019 
February 28, 2019  August 22, 2019 
   
March 14, 2019  September 5, 2019 (1st Thursday) ** 
March 28, 2019  September 26, 2019 



 

2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE 
 
 

AGREE DISAGREE 
 
 
 

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN  GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

JEAN CROSBY        JEAN CROSBY 
 
 

ANGIE GORAL        ANGIE GORAL 
 
 

JOE HOFFMAN        JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

KEITH MCDONALD       KEITH MCDONALD 
 
 

ELI NICOLOSI        ELI NICOLOSI 
 
 

DOROTHY REDD                 DOROTHY REDD 
  

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this  day of  2018. 

 
 
  

 
 

ATTESTED BY: 
 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

  
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD 
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 



 

3 
 

 
FY2019 Regular Meeting Schedule 

Calendar view 

 
Yellow = proposed meeting date 
X = 2nd/4th Thursday exceptions (not scheduled for regular meeting) 



Sponsored by Gary Jury, Chairman 
 

R E S O L U T I O N  
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS  

Submitted by:  Operations & Administrative Committee 

2018CR   
 ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE  
COUNTY BOARD TO EXECUTE AN INTERGOVERNMENTAL  

            AGREEMENT FORMING AND EMPOWERING THE WINNEBAGO 
COUNTY GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM (WinGIS) 

 ______________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, accurate, detailed, up-to-date and comprehensive geographic data is 
vital to the operations of all public agencies in Winnebago County; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, City of Rockford, Rockford Park 

District, Rock River Water Reclamation District, City of Loves Park, Village of 
Machesney Park, North Park Public Water District, and the Village of Cherry Valley 
have collaborated to create a framework to manage and fund a comprehensive geographic 
information system for the benefit of all entities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Intergovernmental Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A 

reflects the structure of the geographic information system as agreed to by the 
aforementioned entities. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the 

County Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board 
Chairman is authorized to execute the Intergovernmental Agreement Forming and 
Empowering the Winnebago County Geographic Information System (WinGIS), in 
substantially the same form as the Agreement set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 

effect immediately upon its adoption. 
 
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE 



 
 

AGREE DISAGREE 
 
 
 
 
 

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN  GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 

ANGIE GORAL  ANGIE GORAL 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 

ELI NICOLOSI  ELI NICOLOSI 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 
 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this day of  , 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Attested by: 

Frank Haney 
Chairman of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 
 
 
 

 

Tiana J. McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 



INTERGOVERNMENTAL  AGREEMENT 

FORMING AND EMPOWERING THE WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION SYSTEM, 
 

WinGIS 
 

This intergovernmental agreement is made and entered into by: the County of Winnebago, the City of 
Rockford, the Rockford Park District, the Rock River Water Reclamation District, the City of Loves Park, 
the Village of Machesney Park, the North Park Public Water District, and the Village of Cherry Valley. 
This agreement seeks to establish a cooperative intergovernmental framework for the purpose of 
coordinating, creating, staffing, funding and maintaining a comprehensive geographic information 
system. 

 
WITNESSETH THAT: 

 
WHEREAS accurate, detailed, up-to-date and comprehensive data on the community’s 

infrastructure, facilities, land uses, property divisions and natural resources and hazards, including their 
precise geographical locations, is essential; and 

 
 

WHEREAS technology, in the form of computer hardware, software and data communications, is 
now available to facilitate the development of information storage and delivery systems that can 
encompass the above-cited data needs and deliver that data efficiently; and 

 
 

WHEREAS the RATS Policy Committee commissioned a study of the above-cited data needs and 
data technology and said study, conducted by PlanGraphics, Inc., resulted in the development of the 
WinGIS Implementation Plan; and 

 
 

WHEREAS the WinGIS Technical Committee, an advisory body comprised of managerial and 
technical representatives from nearly all major governmental service agencies in the Rockford urbanized 
area, worked closely with PlanGraphics in the development of the WinGIS Implementation Plan and 
endorses the Plan; and 

 
 

WHEREAS the laws of the State of Illinois, specifically Article VII, Section 10, of the Illinois 
Constitution and the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 220/1 et seq., permit two or more 
public agencies to contract for the purposes set forth herein. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BY AND AMONG THE PARTIES HEREIN THAT: 



 
 

ARTICLE 1: NAME 
 

Upon ratification of the intergovernmental agreement, hereafter referred to as the Agreement or the 
WinGIS Agreement, by the legislative authorities of all participating entities, those being the County of 
Winnebago, the City of Rockford, the Rockford Park District, the Rock River Water Reclamation District, 
the City of Loves Park, the Village of Machesney Park, the North Park Public Water District, and the 
Village of Cherry Valley (all in Illinois), a joint GIS planning and implementation organization called the 
Winnebago County Geographic Information System known as the acronym WinGIS is hereby formed 
with the purposes, powers and duties, and structure set forth below. 

 
 

ARTICLE 2: PURPOSE 
 

WinGIS is created to perform and carry out a continuing, cooperative, comprehensive program for 
development and maintenance of a GIS in accordance with applicable laws, policies and procedures, 
with the cooperation and assistance of its members. Unless otherwise specified by subsequent 
amendments, the duties of WinGIS shall include: 

 
1. The development and maintenance of a GIS plan including strategies to make more efficient use 

of existing personnel and data. 
2. Implementation of said GIS plan and maintenance of the resulting GIS system and base data. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 3: ORGANIZATION AND GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES 
 

1. WinGIS consists of a Policy Committee, a Technical Committee, and other standing or 
temporary/special purpose committees as needed to carry out the duties and functions of 
WinGIS. 

2. For administrative purposes, a local Lead Agency shall be designated. Unless otherwise changed 
by the Policy Committee, the Lead Agency for WinGIS shall be the Region 1 Planning Council 
(R1PC). 

3. WinGIS planning is guided by the Policy Committee which has final authority over all matters 
within the jurisdiction of WinGIS. 

4. The Technical Committee provides technical information, advice and recommendations to the 
Policy Committee, and conducts or oversees the technical planning and implementation 
functions and duties of WinGIS. 

5. The WinGIS Director is hired/fired by the R1PC Executive Committee or Director with the advice, 
consultation and consent of the WinGIS Policy Board. 

6. Staff of the R1PC shall serve as staff to the WinGIS Policy Committee, under management 
provided by the R1PC Executive Director and WinGIS Director. 



7. The WinGIS Director is the Chairman of the Technical Committee and shall designate alternates 
to act as Technical Committee Chairman in his/her absence. 

8. The WinGIS Director schedules meetings, prepare agendas, issue notices, prepare minutes and 
generally ensure that all meetings are conducted in accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings 
Act. 

9. The designated Lead Agency shall be responsible for administrative services including but not 
limited to coordination of human resources, payroll, finance, benefits, IMRF and legal services as 
well as adjunct services of WinGIS, including record keeping, correspondence, local funding 
disbursement and management, document maintenance, general information dissemination to 
the public, and other supportive services. 

10. The designated Lead Agency shall provide preliminary assurance as needed, of matching funds 
sufficient to capture available State and Federal Funding for GIS purposes (with actual match to 
be provided by agencies or entities using said funds). 

11. After approval of the Policy Committee, the designated Lead Agency shall enter into contracts 
on behalf of WinGIS as needed. 

12. All participating entities agree to provide to WinGIS all data relevant to WinGIS with the 
exception of restricted data. 

13. All participating entities agree to fund WinGIS based on the allocation formula contained in 
Article 7 below. 

 
ARTICLE 4: POLICY COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 

 

The Policy Committee shall consist of the one representative from each of the following public agencies: 
 

1. Winnebago County 
2. City of Rockford 
3. Rockford Park District 
4. Rock River Water Reclamation District 
5. City of Loves Park 
6. Village of Machesney Park 
7. North Park Public Water District 
8. Village of Cherry Valley 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 5: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

1. The WinGIS Policy Committee retains the final authority over the actions of the WinGIS Director, 
work of the WinGIS organization, and WinGIS budget. 

2. It will be the responsibility of the Policy Committee to develop and approve formal agreements 
for participating agencies. 

3. The Policy Committee is responsible for establishing goals and objectives, policy, priorities, and 
procedures. 

4. The Policy Committee is responsible for approving the WinGIS annual work plan. 



5. The Policy Committee approves plans and budgets and ensures the availability of functional, 
technical, human and organizational resources to carry out implementation of adopted plans. 

6. The Policy Committee has the authority to determine membership changes or additions to the 
Technical Committee. 

7. The Policy Committee has the power to establish and appoint members to other temporary or 
special purpose committees as needed to carry out the duties of WinGIS. Membership on these 
committees may consist of individuals or come from organizations not otherwise represented 
on the Technical or Policy Committees. The business of said temporary or special purpose 
committees shall be conducted in a manner similar to that outlined for the Technical Committee 
and as further directed by the Policy Committee. 

8. The Policy Committee annually elects a Chairman and a Vice Chairman from its membership. 
Said election shall occur at the last Policy meeting of the fiscal year to take effect with the new 
fiscal year. 

9. The Policy Committee has the authority to enact by-laws governing or directing the activities 
and procedures of WinGIS and expand upon the terms of the Agreement, provided such by-laws 
do not conflict with the terms of this Agreement. 

10. Subject to approval by the Policy Committee, WinGIS, acting through the Lead Agency, is 
empowered to enter into contracts and agreements with units of Federal, State and local 
government, private corporations, not-for-profit organizations, partnerships and individuals for 
purposes within the authority of WinGIS. 

11. Subject to approval of the Policy Committee the Lead Agency, on behalf of WinGIS, is 
empowered to receive grants, loans, gifts, bequests and funding from Federal, State and local 
units of government and from public and private sources. 

 
 

ARTICLE 6: SUGGESTED MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA AND TERMS - POLICY COMMITTEE 
 

New members may be added to the Policy Committee by simple amendment to this Agreement. 
However, it is agreed the following criteria are suggested when considering new Policy Committee 
membership: 

 
1. The existing members and the petitioning entity must reach mutual agreement regarding voting 

powers and any other factors considered relevant. Decisions on issues involving the use of funds 
shall continue to require a majority approval of no less than three-fourths (3/4) of the total 
Policy Committee membership, including two (2) of the four (4) largest – indicated by financial 
contribution - participating agencies. 

2. The entity desires membership and makes a formal written request to the Policy Committee for 
consideration of membership and agrees to annual funding formula of WinGIS. 

3. The entity must have a minimum population of at least 5,000. 
4. The entity shall pay a one-time entrance fee in addition to their portion of the WinGIS annual 

budget as determined by the WinGIS allocation formula. The aforementioned one-time payment 
may be spread across multiple fiscal years. During that period and until the payment is 



completed, the new member is allowed voting privileges but cannot serve as committee Chair or 
Vice Chair. 

ARTICLE 7: FUNDING ALLOCATION 
 

1. Shared costs are those which all participants to this Agreement will pay based on the allocation 
formula. They are to cover all operating costs. 

2. Shared costs will be allocated based on the following formula, which may be modified by 
unanimous vote of the Policy Committee: See exhibit A. 

3. Dedicated costs are those costs incurred by individual participants to operate and maintain 
WinGIS within their own organizations. These include, but are not limited to, hardware, 
software and training costs. These are to be paid internally by each entity through their normal 
budget process. 

 
 

ARTICLE 8: TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 

Unless otherwise expanded or modified by further action of the Policy Committee, the Technical 
Committee consists of one authorized representative from each of the following public agencies 
involved in the use of WinGIS or planning for its use: 

 
1. Winnebago County 
2. City of Rockford 
3. Rockford Park District 
4. Rock River Water Reclamation District 
5. City of Loves Park 
6. Village of Machesney Park 
7. North Park Public Water District 
8. Village of Cherry Valley 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 9: POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
 

1. The Technical Committee provides technical advice and recommendations to the Policy 
Committee on all matters pertaining to the technical functions of WinGIS and on other related 
matters referred to them by the Policy Committee. 

 
2. Technical Committee meetings will be structured similar to Policy with one voting and one proxy 

member designated and approved by the Policy Committee representative from each respective 
WinGIS agency. 

3. Any resolutions presented to the Technical Committee shall be voted on in the final format. In 
addition, the Technical Committee’s vote record - listed by each agency - shall be included in the 
Policy resolution. 



4. This committee participates in the evaluation of the procurement for services related to 
hardware and software selection, data conversion and vendor selection necessary for 
implementation as a shared cost. 

5. The Technical Committee establishes and appoints members to other temporary or special 
purpose committees as needed to carry out the duties of the Technical Committee. 
Membership on these committees may consist of individuals or come from organizations not 
otherwise represented on the Technical Committee or Policy Committees. The business of said 
temporary or special purpose committees shall be conducted in a manner similar to that 
outlined for the Technical Committee and as further directed by the Technical Committee. 

6. Other responsibilities include standards development and budget preparation. 
 
 
 

ARTICLE 10: NEW MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA AND TERMS - TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 
 

Technical Committee entities may occasionally need to be changed or added to in response to changes 
in local government needs. The Policy Committee, by unanimous agreement of its members, shall have 
the authority, without qualification, to change or add Technical Committee entities. The Policy 
Committee may also appoint new Technical Committee entities by simple majority vote if the entity 
meets all of the following criteria: 

 
The entity is (a) a special purpose unit of government, or; (b) a city or village, or; (c) a public utility, or; 
(d) a corporation operating under a franchise agreement. 

 
 
 

ARTICLE 11: MEETINGS - VOTING – MISCELLANEOUS 
 

1. The Policy Committee meets regularly. The Policy Committee Chairman or, in the absence of 
the Chairman, the Vice Chairman, has the authority to cancel or reschedule Policy Committee 
meetings, to call special or emergency meetings, to continue meetings, or to change the 
schedule of regular meetings, as needed to conduct the business of WinGIS. 

2. The Technical Committee meets regularly. In regard to the Technical Committee meetings, the 
Chairman of the Technical Committee has the authority to cancel or reschedule meetings, to call 
special or emergency meetings, to continue meetings or to change the schedule for regular 
meetings, as needed to conduct the business of WinGIS. 

3. A quorum of the Policy or Technical Committees and/or any other temporary or special purpose 
committee established under the powers established herein, consists of a majority of the 
committee’s members, respectively; unless otherwise determined by the Policy or Technical 
Committee. 

4. Policy Committee actions on issues which determine the use or allocation of funds require an 
affirmative vote of no less than three-fourths (3/4) of Policy Committee members, including two 
(2) of the four (4) largest – indicated by financial contribution - participating agencies. Unless 



otherwise more strictly specified in other parts of this Agreement, all other issues shall be 
decided by a simple majority vote of the quorum present for the meeting. 

5. Formal minutes of all meetings of the Policy Committee, Technical Committee and other special 
standing or temporary committees are to be kept. 

6. All meetings are open to the public with appropriate public notice, held in places accessible to 
the handicapped, and conducted in accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act. 

7. Voting and representation through another person authorized to act for a member (proxy) is 
permitted on the Policy Committee. Authorization must be in the form of a written statement 
from the official member giving the proxy. Such authorization may be permanent or limited at 
the discretion of the official member granting the proxy. Absentee voting is not allowed - this 
includes video and teleconferencing. 

8. Proxy voting and representation is permitted on the Technical Committee, to the extent needed. 
Written authorization is not required, but new persons or persons not normally representing 
member agencies announce which member agency they are authorized to represent at the start 
of the meeting. Absentee voting is not provided for and no single person may represent or vote 
for more than one member agency at any given meeting. 

9. The business of the Policy and Technical Committee meetings is conducted in accordance with 
the following and in the same order of priority to avoid conflict: (a) state law; (b) the terms of 
this Agreement; (c) applicable by-laws of WinGIS, if any and (d) Roberts Rules of Order. 

10. Appropriate Committee actions are made in the form of written resolutions approved or denied 
through formal motions at the meetings. At the discretion of the Chairman, simpler Policy 
Committee actions or directions to the Technical Committee, Program Manager or staff may be 
made in the form of motions. All official actions and the votes thereon shall be recorded in the 
minutes. Most Technical Committee actions will be in the form of motions which make 
recommendations or deliver information to the Policy Committee. 

 
 

ARTICLE 12: EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ASSURANCE 
 

The participants of this Agreement hereby certify the following: 
 

1. That they shall not discriminate against any employee of WinGIS or applicant for employment by 
WinGIS because of race, age, sex, color, disabilities, national origin or any other class protected 
by federal or state law; 

2. That they take affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment by WinGIS are hired, 
managed and supervised without regard to race, age, sex, color, disabilities, national origin or 
any other class protected by federal or state law; 

3. That they state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without 
regard to race, age, sex, color, disabilities, national origin or any other class protected by federal 
or state law; and 



4. That they incorporate the foregoing requirements of this paragraph in all WinGIS contracts for 
program work and will require its contractors, if any, for such work to incorporate such 
requirements in all subcontract work. 

 
ARTICLE 13: SEVERABILITY 

 

If any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement, or subsequent by-laws which may be added to 
direct or govern activities of WinGIS, or subsequent application thereof, are declared unconstitutional or 
contrary to law by a court of competent jurisdiction, such ruling shall not affect any other provisions of 
this Agreement not specifically included in such ruling or which can be given effect without the 
unconstitutional or invalid provision or application, and to this end, the provisions of this Agreement are 
declared severable. 

 
 

ARTICLE 14: RATIFICATION, AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION 
 

1. Additional parties to this Agreement may participate through adoption of an authorizing 
resolution or ordinance similar to those adopted by the original members; each current party to 
the Agreement must authorize participation of additional members through adoption of a 
resolution. 

2. The initial term of this Agreement shall be effective upon ratification by the last participating 
entity and shall renew automatically for one year terms with the start of each new fiscal year 
thereafter unless terminated sooner as set forth herein. 

3. A member must present written notice of intention to withdraw from this Agreement at least six 
(6) months prior to the annual automatic renewal date and such withdrawal shall be effective 
on the automatic renewal date. 

4. Regardless of the above, this Agreement may be terminated in its entirety or amended at any 
time by unanimous vote of the Policy Committee. 

5. In the event this Agreement is terminated in its entirety, assets of WinGIS shall be disposed of in 
the following manner: 

a. All data must be distributed to each agency within sixty (60) days of termination. 
b. All other assets shall be disposed of at a municipal public auction and proceeds 

distributed according to the most recent funding allocation table. 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

COUNTY CLERK THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
 

Tiana McCall, Clerk of the County Frank Haney, Chairman of the County Board 
Board of the County of Winnebago,  of the County of Winnebago, IL 



Illinois 
City of Rockford 

 
 
 
 
 

Rockford Park District 
 
 
 
 
 

Rock River Water Reclamation District 
 
 
 
 

City of Loves Park 
 
 
 
 

Village of Machesney Park 
 
 
 
 

North Park Public Water District 
 
 
 
 

Village of Cherry Valley 
 
 
 



 
 

Blending Formula Definitions 
Using GIS Data 

 

Geographic Area (square miles): 
Geographic Area shall be calculated using Illinois State Plane West, NAD83 coordinate system and reported in units 
of square miles. All allocation calculations of geographic area shall be determined from the WinGIS land base 
database. All calculations of geographic area shall be limited to areas contained within Winnebago County. 

 
Winnebago County: 

• Geographic area shall be calculated as the square miles of all the parcels in the county, less area shared with 
the other participating WinGIS municipalities 

 
Municipal Jurisdictions 

• Geographic area shall be calculated as the square miles of the parcels in which a municipality levies taxes. 
 

Utility Districts Levying Taxes 
• Geographic area shall be calculated as the square miles of the parcels in which a utility district levies taxes. 

 

Utility Districts Not Levying Taxes: 
• Geographic area shall be the square miles of the parcels in which the centroid falls within the service area 

boundary. 
 

Special Service Districts: 
• Geographic area shall be the square miles of the parcels in which the centroid falls within the service area 

boundary. 
 

Density Factor (Parcels) 
Density shall be calculated by using the total number of taxpayers (PINS) within the municipality boundary or 
service district. All calculations shall be based on parcels contained within Winnebago County. 

 

Annual Revenue 
Annual Revenue shall be defined as all actual revenue funds - less excluded funds and transfers - as indicated in 
member agency's annual report for the last completed fiscal year. 

EXHIBIT 

I  A  



Sponsored by Gary Jury, Chairman 
 

R E S O L U T I O N  
of the 

COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

Submitted by:  Operations & Administrative Committee 

2018 CR   
             ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE 
COUNTY BOARD TO EXECUTE A COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

FORMING AND EMPOWERING THE ROCKFORD 
METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING 

             ____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

WHEREAS, federal law requires that urbanized areas have a continuous, 
cooperative, and comprehensive transportation planning process in place as a condition 
for receiving federal funds; and 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, City of Rockford, City of Loves Park, 

City of Belvidere, Village of Machesney Park, County of Boone, and the State of Illinois 
have collaborated to form a joint transportation planning organization to benefit the 
Rockford Urbanized Area, known as the Rockford Metropolitan Agency for Planning 
(MPO); and 

 
WHEREAS, the duties of MPO include developing and maintaining a long range 

transportation plan for the Rockford Urbanized Area, which will benefit all of the 
aforementioned governmental entities; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Cooperative Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A reflects the 

structure of the Rockford Metropolitan Agency for Planning as agreed to by the 
aforementioned entities. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the County 

Board of the County of Winnebago, Illinois, that the Winnebago County Board Chairman 
is authorized to execute the Cooperative Agreement Forming and Empowering the 
Rockford Metropolitan Agency for Planning, in substantially the same form as the 
Agreement set forth in Exhibit A. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and 

effect immediately upon its adoption. 



 

2 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 
 

OPERATIONS & ADMINISTRATIVE 
COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE DISAGREE 

 
 
 
 
 

GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN  GARY JURY, CHAIRMAN 

ANGIE GORAL  ANGIE GORAL 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 

DOROTHY REDD  DOROTHY REDD 

ELI NICOLOSI  ELI NICOLOSI 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 

JEAN CROSBY  JEAN CROSBY 
 
 
 

The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, this day of  , 2018. 

 
 
 

Frank Haney 
Chairman of the County Board 

Attested by: of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 
 
 
 

Tiana J. McCall 
Clerk of the County Board 
of the County of Winnebago, Illinois 

 



 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT  

FORMING AND EMPOWERING THE 

ROCKFORD METROPOLITAN AGENCY FOR PLANNING 

August 23rd, 2018 

    

RECITALS ....................................................................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE 1.  NAME.......................................................................................................................................... 1 

ARTICLE 2. PURPOSE AND DUTIES OF RMAP................................................................................................ 1 

ARTICLE 3.  ORGANIZATION AND GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES .............................................................. 2 

ARTICLE 4.  POLICY COMMITTEE ................................................................................................................... 2 

ARTICLE 5.  TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP ..................................................................................... 3 

ARTICLE 6.  POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE .................................................................. 3 

ARTICLE 7.  POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE............................................................ 4 

ARTICLE  8.  POWERS  AND  DUTIES  OF  THE  EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND THE FISCAL AGENT ................... 4 

ARTICLE 9.  MEETINGS, VOTING, MISCELLANEOUS ...................................................................................... 5 

ARTICLE 10.  MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA AND TERMS - POLICY COMMITTEE ................................................... 6 

ARTICLE 11.  NEW MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA AND TERMS - TECHNICAL COMMITTEE .................................... 6 

ARTICLE 12.  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ASSURANCE – TITLE VI AND ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE ...................... 7 

ARTICLE 13.  SEVERABILITY ........................................................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE 14.  RATIFICATION, AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION .................................................................. 7 

ARTICLE 15.  EFFECT ON PREVIOUS ACTIONS, POLICIES, AND PLANS .......................................................... 8 

ARTICLE 16 – OTHER PERMITTED CHANGES TO THIS AGREEMENT .............................................................. 8 

ARTICLE 17. LOCAL MATCH PAYMENTS ........................................................................................................ 8 

ATTESTATION ................................................................................................................................................ 8 

 

 

 

  



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

1 

 

RECITALS 1 

 

WITNESSETH THAT: 2 
 

Whereas  The Intermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA), the Transportation Equity 3 

Act for the 21st
  

Century (TEA-21), the Safe, Accountable, Flexible, Efficient Transportation 4 

Equity Act - A Legacy For Users (SAFETEA-LU), the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st 5 

Century Act (MAP-21), and the Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (FAST Act) require 6 

that each urbanized area, as a condition to the receipt of Federal capital or operating assistance, have 7 

a continuous, cooperative and comprehensive (3-C) transportation planning process that results in 8 

plans and programs consistent with the comprehensively planned development of the urbanized area; 9 

and 10 

 

Whereas It is reasonable and probable to anticipate that Federal action will take place in the near future 11 

that will reaffirm the need for a comprehensive transportation planning process and said 12 

process will be substantially similar to the provisions of the ISTEA, TEA-21, SAFETEA-LU, 13 

MAP-21, FAST Act; and 14 

 

Whereas  The Rockford Metropolitan Agency for Planning (“MPO”) has performed comprehensive 15 

transportation planning for the Rockford Urbanized Area, in accordance with the above said 16 

Federal laws and their precursors since 1964; and 17 

  18 

Whereas  the Governor of Illinois has designated the Rockford Metropolitan Agency for Planning as 19 

the Metropolitan Planning Organization (“MPO”) responsible for carrying out the 20 

federally-required planning requirements for the area, in cooperation with the State; and 21 

 

Whereas  the laws of the State of Illinois, specifically the Intergovernmental Cooperation Act, 5 ILCS 22 

220/1 et seq., permit two or more governmental units to contract for the purposes set forth; and 23 

 24 

Whereas  an identified regional need for coordinated transportation, land use, environmental and 25 

economic development planning has resulted in the creation of the Region 1 Planning Council 26 

(“RPC”): and 27 

 28 

Whereas the RPC and the MPO collaborate to accomplish planning requirements and address regional 29 

planning needs  30 

 31 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED BY AND AMONG THE PARTIES HEREIN THAT: 32 

 

ARTICLE 1.  NAME 33 
 

Upon ratification of this cooperative agreement, hereafter referred to as the Agreement or the MPO Agreement, by the 34 

legislative authorities of all participating entities, including the City of Rockford, the City of Loves Park, the City of 35 

Belvidere, the Village of Machesney Park, the County of Boone, County of Winnebago (all in Illinois), and the 36 

State of Illinois, a joint transportation planning organization called the Rockford Metropolitan Agency for 37 

Planning, hereafter referred to by said name or “MPO”, is hereby formed with the purposes, powers and structure 38 

set forth below. 39 

 

ARTICLE 2. PURPOSE AND DUTIES OF MPO 40 
 

The MPO is created to perform and carry out a continuing, cooperative, comprehensive transportation planning 41 

process for the Census Defined Rockford Urbanized Area in accordance with applicable Federal laws, policies and 42 

procedures, and with the cooperation and assistance of its members and the U.S. Department of Transportation.  43 

Unless otherwise specified by subsequent amendments to U.S.C.134 and 49 U.S.C. 1607, the duties of the MPO shall 44 

include:45 

 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

2 

 

1. The development and maintenance of a long range transportation plan, including strategies to make more 46 

efficient use of existing transportation systems (acronym LRTP). 47 

 

2. The development and annual update of a transportation improvement program consistent with the 48 

transportation plan (acronym TIP). 49 

 

3. The development and annual update of a unified planning work program which coordinates the area's 50 

transportation planning activities (acronym UWP). 51 

 

4. Other planning and project development activities necessary to address transportation and land use issues 52 

in the region including technical assistance to the RPC members. 53 

 

ARTICLE 3.  ORGANIZATION AND GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES 54 
 

1. The MPO shall consist of a Policy Committee, a Technical Committee, and other standing or 55 

temporary/special purpose committees as needed to carry out the duties and functions of the MPO. 56 

 

2. MPO planning shall be guided by the Policy Committee which shall have final authority over all matters 57 

within the jurisdiction of the MPO. 58 

 

3. The Technical Committee shall be established for the purpose of providing technical advice and 59 

recommendations to the Policy Committee, and request and deliberate on the technical planning functions 60 

and duties of the MPO. 61 

 

4. Additional MPO Subcommittees shall be established for the purpose of providing professional and 62 

community based ideas on particular issues/topics that come before the MPO Technical Committee and 63 

MPO Policy Committee.  Subcommittee assistance and conclusions / recommendations shall be forwarded 64 

to the Technical Committee for further discussions. 65 

 

5. For administrative purposes, the RPC shall be the MPO fiscal agent. 66 

 67 

6. Staff of the RPC shall serve as staff to the MPO Policy Committee, under management provided by the 

RPC Executive Director and MPO Director of Planning. 

 

7. The MPO shall be subject to the annual Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the State of Illinois 68 

Department of Transportation. 69 

 

8. The State of Illinois Department of Transportation shall assist the MPO in securing data and source 70 

materials necessary for the effective accomplishment of the 3-C transportation planning activities as 71 

described and outlined in the annual UWP and Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA).  If there is conflict, 72 

the IGA will supersede the UWP. 73 

 

ARTICLE 4.  POLICY COMMITTEE 74 
 75 

The Policy Committee membership shall be representative of the general purpose units of government and 76 

organizations as required by Federal Transportation Law in the planning area (particularly those in the Urbanized 77 

Area).  The Policy Committee shall consist of the following persons or their duly authorized representatives. 78 

 79 

MPO Policy Committee 

Entity Representative 

1 Belvidere Mayor 

2 Boone County Board Chairman 

3 Illinois Department of Transportation Region Engineer (Region 2) 

4 Loves Park Mayor 

5 Machesney Park Village President 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

3 

 

6 Rockford Mayor 

7 Winnebago County Board Chairman 

8 Rockford Mass Transit District Board Chairman 

 

 

ARTICLE 5.  TECHNICAL COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 80 
 

Unless otherwise expanded or modified by further action of the Policy Committee, the Technical Committee shall 81 

consist of one duly authorized representative from the following transportation planning or implementing agencies 82 

with responsibility in the urban area: 83 

 

MPO Technical Committee 

Voting Members 

1 Belvidere Public Works Department 

2 Belvidere Planning Department  

3 Boone County Conservation District 

4 Boone County Highway Department 

5 Boone County Planning Department 

6 Forest Preserves of Winnebago County 

7 Greater Rockford Airport Authority 

8 Illinois Department of Transportation, Region 2 

9 Loves Park Public Works Department 

10 Loves Park Community Development Department 

11 Machesney Park Planning Department 

12 Machesney Park Public Works Department 

13 Winnebago County Soil and Water Conservation District 

14 City of Rockford Community Development Department, Planning Division 

15 Rockford Mass Transit District 

16 Rockford Park District 

17 City of Rockford Public Works Department 

18 Rock River Reclamation District 

19 Winnebago County Highway Department 

20 Winnebago County Planning and Economic Development Department 

 

 

ARTICLE 6.  POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE POLICY COMMITTEE 84 
 

1. The MPO Policy Committee and the Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) shall jointly share the 85 

responsibility for developing and maintaining the transportation plans and programs as required by State 86 

and Federal law.  To the extent possible and depending upon State and Federal appropriations, IDOT and 87 

the local and county units of government shall make funding available to MPO for the purpose of carrying 88 

out these responsibilities. 89 

 

2. The Policy Committee shall have the authority to determine membership changes or additions on the 90 

Technical Committee in accordance with the terms set forth. 91 

 

3. The Policy Committee shall have the authority to establish and participate in alternate board structures for 92 

regional planning purposes other than those defined by federal or state law for Metropolitan Planning 93 

Organizations.  These alternate board structures may resemble a Council of Governments, Regional 94 

Planning Commission, Regional Council or Regional Planning Board.  The alternate board structure may 95 

be established by Intergovernmental Agreement and may require compliance with the provisions of 50 96 

ILCS 10/0.01 et seq. Regional Council Act or 50 ILCS 15/0.01 et seq. Regional Planning Commission Act. 97 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

4 

 

 

4. The Policy Committee shall have the power to establish and appoint members to other temporary or special 98 

purpose committees as needed to carry out the duties of the MPO. Membership on these committees may 99 

consist of individuals or come from organizations not otherwise represented on the Technical or Policy 100 

Committees. The business of said temporary or special purpose committee shall be conducted in a manner 101 

similar to that outlined for the Technical Committee and as further directed by the Policy Committee. 102 

 

5. The Policy Committee shall annually elect a Chairman and a Vice Chairman from its membership, said 103 

election to occur at the Policy Committee meeting in June, or the nearest meeting thereafter, of each year.  104 

The Chairman of the Policy Committee shall not be the Illinois Department of Transportation Deputy 105 

Director of Region 2. 106 

 

6. The Policy Committee shall have the authority to enact by-laws further governing or directing the activities 107 

and procedures of the MPO and expanding upon the terms of this Agreement, provided such by-laws do not 108 

conflict with the terms of this Agreement. 109 

 

7. The Policy Committee is empowered to enter into contracts and agreements with units of Federal, State and 110 

local government, private corporations, not-for-profit organizations, partnerships and individuals for 111 

purposes within the authority of the MPO. 112 

 

8. The Policy Committee is empowered to receive grants, loans, gifts, bequests and funding from Federal, 113 

State, and local units of government, and from public and private sources.  114 

 

9. The Policy Committee shall approve and maintain the Transportation Plan, and shall annually review and 115 

approve the Transportation Improvement Program and the Unified Planning Work Program. 116 

 

10. The Policy Committee shall direct and oversee the planning process to ensure the following in accordance 117 

with applicable Federal laws: involvement of appropriate public and private transportation providers; 118 

nondiscrimination on the basis of age, race, color or national origin; appropriate involvement of minority 119 

business enterprises; adequate plans and provisions for the transportation-handicapped; adequate plans and 120 

provisions to control and reduce air pollution; and adequate plans, programs and measures to assure 121 

compliance with the terms of other duly enacted State and Federal laws related to the transportation 122 

planning / implementation process including but not limited to environmental justice, intelligent 123 

transportation systems, transportation safety and service to persons traditionally underserved. 124 

 

ARTICLE 7.  POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 125 
 

1. The Technical Committee shall provide technical advice and recommendations to the Policy Committee 126 

on all matters pertaining to the technical planning functions of the MPO and on other related matters 127 

referred to them by the Policy Committee. 128 

 

2. The Technical Committee shall establish and appoint members to other temporary or special purpose 129 

committees as needed to carry out the duties of the Technical Committee. Membership on these 130 

committees may consist of individuals or come from organizations not otherwise represented on the 131 

Technical or Policy Committees.  The business of said temporary or special purpose committees shall be 132 

conducted in a manner similar to that outlined for the Technical Committee and as further directed by the 133 

Technical Committee. 134 

 

ARTICLE  8.    POWERS  AND  DUTIES  OF  THE  RPC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, RPC DEPUTY 135 

DIRECTOR / MPO DIRECTOR OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING AND THE FISCAL AGENT 136 

 

1. The RPC Executive Director shall supervise and coordinate the activities of the MPO and coordinate the 137 

fiscal affairs of the MPO with the RPC and any fiscal agency hierarchy. 138 

 

2. The RPC Executive Director shall have the responsibility to direct the work of RPC staff for MPO activities. 139 

 

3. The RPC Executive Director shall designate the RPC Deputy Director/MPO Director of Planning as the 140 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

5 

 

Chairman of the MPO Technical Committee and shall designate alternates to act as Technical Committee 141 

Chairman in the MPO Director of Planning’s absence. 142 

 

4. The RPC Executive Director and RPC Deputy Director/MPO Director of Planning shall be responsible for 143 

the administrative functions of the MPO including record keeping, correspondence, document maintenance, 144 

website, general information dissemination to the public, other supportive services to the MPO member 145 

agencies, and to financial record keeping in coordination with the RPC. 146 

 

5. The RPC Executive Director, RPC Deputy Director/MPO Director of Planning and RPC staff shall schedule 147 

meetings, prepare agendas, issue notices, prepare minutes and generally ensure that all meetings are 148 

conducted in accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act. 149 

 

6. The RPC shall provide preliminary assurance, as needed, of matching funds sufficient to capture available 150 

Federal and State subsidies available for transportation and related regional planning purposes. The actual 151 

matching fund amounts shall be determined by the RPC Executive Director in consultation with the MPO 152 

Policy Committee and will be provided to the MPO by the MPO Policy Committee member jurisdictions. 153 

 

7. After approval by the Policy Committee, the MPO shall enter into contracts, as needed, with the State of 154 

Illinois Department of Transportation to capture and utilize subsidies available for transportation and related 155 

regional planning purposes. 156 

 

ARTICLE 9.  MEETINGS, VOTING, MISCELLANEOUS 157 

 

1. The MPO Policy Committee shall meet on the same day as the scheduled meetings of the RPC Governing 158 

Board.  In regard to Policy Committee meetings, the Policy Committee Chairman or, in the absence of the 159 

Chairman, the Vice Chairman shall have the authority to cancel or reschedule meetings, to call special or 160 

emergency meetings, to continue meetings, or to change the schedule of regular meetings, as needed to 161 

conduct the business of the MPO. 162 

 

2. The MPO Technical Committee shall meet regularly on the Thursday following the third Tuesday of each 163 

month.  In regard to Technical Committee meetings, the Chairman of the Technical Committee shall have 164 

the authority to cancel or reschedule meetings, to call special or emergency meetings, to continue meetings 165 

or to change the schedule for regular meetings, as needed to conduct the business of the MPO. 166 

 

3. A quorum of the MPO Policy or Technical Committees and/or any other temporary or special purpose 167 

committee established under the powers established herein shall consist of a majority of the committee's 168 

members, respectively, unless otherwise determined by the Policy or Technical Committee. 169 

 

4. The MPO Policy Committee actions on issues which determine the use or allocation of Federal funds shall 170 

require a majority vote of not less than two-thirds (2/ 3rds) the total number of Policy Committee members. 171 

Unless otherwise more strictly specified in other parts of this Agreement, all other issues shall be decided by 172 

a simple majority vote of the quorum present for the meeting. 173 

 

5. Formal minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the MPO Policy Committee, Technical Committee and other 174 

special standing or temporary committees. 175 

 

6. All meetings shall be open to the public, held in places accessible to persons with disabilities, and conducted 176 

in accordance with the Illinois Open Meetings Act. 177 

 

7. Voting and representation through another person authorized to act for a member (proxy) is permitted on the 178 

Policy Committee.  Authorization must be in the form of a written statement from the official member 179 

giving proxy. Such authorization may be permanent or limited at the discretion of the official member 180 

granting proxy. Absentee voting is not allowed. 181 

 

8. Proxy voting and representation is permitted on the MPO Technical Committee, to the extent needed. 182 

Written authorization is not required, but new persons or persons not normally representing member 183 

agencies shall announce which member agency they are authorized to represent at the start of the meeting.  184 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

6 

 

Absentee voting is not provided for and no single person may represent or vote for more than one member 185 

agency at any given meeting. 186 

 

9. The business of the MPO Policy and Technical Committee meetings shall be conducted in accordance 187 

with the following and in the same order of priority to avoid conflict: (1) the terms of this Agreement, (2) 188 

applicable by-laws of the MPO, if any, and (3) Roberts Rules of Order. 189 

 

10. Major MPO Policy Committee actions shall be made in the form of written resolutions approved or denied 190 

through formal motions at the meetings.  At the discretion of the Policy Committee Chairman, more 191 

routine MPO Policy Committee actions or directions to the Technical Committee, RPC Executive Director 192 

or staff may be made in the form of motions.  At the discretion of the Policy Committee Chairman a 193 

Consent Agenda may be used for routine functions of the Policy Committee.  All official actions and the 194 

votes thereon shall be recorded in the minutes.  Most Technical Committee actions will be in the form of 195 

motions which make recommendations or deliver information to the Policy Committee. 196 

 

ARTICLE 10.  MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA AND TERMS - POLICY COMMITTEE 197 
 198 

An entity desiring membership to the MPO Policy Committee should make a formal written request to the Policy 199 

Committee.  The Policy Committee will review and evaluate all such requests and respond in a timely manner. 200 

New members may be added to the Policy Committee without re-ratification of this agreement by the legislative 201 

bodies of the existing members if (a) the new member entity is required by Federal Transportation Law, or (b) the 202 

new member entity is unanimously endorsed by existing MPO Policy Committee members and all of the following 203 

criteria and conditions are met. 204 

 

1. The new entity is an incorporated village or city within the Census Defined Rockford Urbanized Area or a 205 

County encompassing part of the Census Defined Rockford Urbanized Area. 206 

 

a. If the new entity is a County, it shall contain a population of at least 7,500 persons located within 207 

the Census-defined Rockford Urbanized Area, with said 7,500 persons not residing within a city 208 

or village having representation on the Policy Committee, according to the most recent U.S. 209 

Census of Population. 210 

 

b. If the new entity is a city or village, it shall contain at least five (5) percent of the population of 211 

the Census-defined Rockford Urbanized Area, according to the most recent U.S. Census of 212 

Population. 213 

 

2. The entity has responsibility (ownership or maintenance) for three (3) road miles or more with Federal route 214 

designation on the latest Federal Aid Five-Year Classification Map. 215 

 

3. The entity has responsibility, including significant financial participation, for substantial public transit 216 

service, fixed route and/or demand-response. 217 

 

4. The legislative body of the new entity adopts/ratifies this agreement (altered only to include their entity 218 

in the list of Policy Committee members). 219 

 

5. The existing Policy Committee members unanimously agree to admit the requesting member. 220 

 

 

 

ARTICLE 11.  NEW MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA AND TERMS - TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 221 
 

Technical Committee membership may occasionally need to be changed or added to in response to changes in local 222 

government structure or transportation planning emphasis or enlargements of the MPO Metropolitan Planning Area 223 

(MPA). The Policy Committee, by unanimous agreement of its members, shall have the authority, without 224 

qualification, to change or add Technical Committee members.  The Policy Committee may also appoint new 225 

Technical Committee members by simple majority vote if the entity meets all of the following criteria: 226 

 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

7 

 

1. The entity is a local unit of government that has a relationship to the 3-C (continuing, cooperative, 227 

comprehensive) transportation planning activities totally or partially within the MPO Metropolitan 228 

Planning Area.   229 

 

2. The entity is eligible to receive, directly or indirectly, Federal funds from the U.S. Department of 230 

Transportation and/or the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, U.S. Department of Agriculture, U.S. 231 

Department of the Interior 232 

 

3. The entity is able to contract with other entities, either as an autonomous entity itself or as an empowered 233 

department or agency of an autonomous entity. 234 

 

4. The entity is: (a) a special purpose unit of government; or (b) a county, city or village that provides 235 

transportation services or facilities as part or all of its functions; or (c) a not-for-profit corporation 236 

whose chartered function under the laws of the State is to provide transportation services. 237 

 

ARTICLE 12.  EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ASSURANCE – TITLE VI AND ENVIRONMENTAL JUSTICE 238 
 239 

The participants of this Agreement hereby certify that as a condition of receiving Federal financial assistance to 240 

conduct transportation planning activities, the participants will ensure that: 241 

 

1.  No person in the United States shall, on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from 242 

participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity 243 

receiving Federal financial assistance. 244 

 

2. The MPO will compile, maintain and submit in a timely manner Title VI and Environmental Justice 245 

information required by FTA Circular 4702.1B et seq., and FTA Circular 4703.1 and in compliance 246 

with the U.S. Department of Transportation's Title VI regulation, 49 CFR Part 21.9. 247 

 

3. The MPO will make it known to the public that the person or persons alleging discrimination on the basis 248 

of age, race, color, or national origin, as it relates to the provision of transportation services and 249 

transit-related benefits, may file a complaint with the Federal Transit Administration and/or the U.S. 250 

Department of Transportation. 251 

 

ARTICLE 13.  SEVERABILITY 252 
 

If any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement, or subsequent by-laws which may be added to direct or 253 

govern the activities of the MPO, or subsequent application thereof are declared unconstitutional or contrary to 254 

law by a court of competent jurisdiction, such ruling shall not affect any other provision of this Agreement not 255 

specifically included in such ruling or which can be given effect without the unconstitutional or invalid provision or 256 

application; and to this end, the provisions of this Agreement are declared severable. 257 

 

ARTICLE 14.  RATIFICATION, AMENDMENT AND TERMINATION 258 
 

1. Ratification of this Agreement shall be made by the Mayors, President, Chairman, or Director of the 259 

Cities, Village, Counties, or Department of Transportation, as appropriate, when so empowered by formal 260 

action of the appropriate member organization. 261 

 

2. Amendment to this Agreement shall be made in the same manner as initial ratification. 262 

 

3. Additional parties of this Agreement may participate through adoption of an authorizing resolution or 263 

ordinance similar to those adopted by the original members.   264 

 265 

4. This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification and shall supersede all prior agreements for 266 

cooperative transportation planning in the Census Defined Rockford Urbanized Area. 267 

 

5. This Agreement shall remain in force continuously and shall be automatically renewed on each succeeding 268 

June 30th following initial ratification unless a member presents written notice of intention to terminate 269 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

8 

 

the Agreement at least six months prior to the annual automatic renewal date.  Regardless of the above, 270 

this Agreement may be terminated or amended at any time upon unanimous mutual consent of the 271 

members. 272 

 

ARTICLE 15.  EFFECT ON PREVIOUS ACTIONS, POLICIES, AND PLANS 273 
 

In as much as the MPO has been in existence and has conducted transportation planning for the Rockford 274 

Urbanized Area since 1964, this Agreement is intended to establish the authority of the MPO to continue said 275 

transportation planning.  This agreement shall supersede the MPO Cooperative Agreement previously adopted by 276 

Rockford, Loves Park, Machesney Park, Belvidere, Winnebago County, Boone County, Rockford Mass Transit 277 

District and the Illinois DOT on August 28th, 2014.  With regard to all other plans, policies, procedures, studies, 278 

resolutions and other official actions previously adopted or established by and through the RATS organization in 279 

existence prior to this Agreement, and not in conflict with this Agreement, those official actions shall continue 280 

to remain in effect until further definitive action is taken by the MPO to add to, alter, or nullify all or any part of 281 

said previous official actions.   Further, any policies, resolutions or official actions or parts thereof in conflict with 282 

the terms of this Agreement are hereby repealed to the extent of their conflict or inconsistency. 283 

 

ARTICLE 16 – OTHER PERMITTED CHANGES TO THIS AGREEMENT 284 
 

After the initial ratification of this Agreement by the legislative bodies of the parties herein, the Policy Committee is 285 

authorized to make the following non-substantive, technical changes to this Agreement without further ratification 286 

by the legislative bodies: 287 

 

1. Technical clarifications necessary to keep this document current with changes in Federal law and guidance 288 

pertaining to the Federally-required metropolitan planning process. 289 

 

2. Codifications that update this document pursuant to actions taken by the MPO Policy Committee in 290 

accordance with the powers granted to the MPO Policy Committee in previous portions of this document 291 

– such as the addition of new members to the MPO Policy Committee or Technical Committee, 292 

changes regarding the RPC Executive Director or fiscal agent, and/or the creation of special subcommittees, 293 

said changes concordant with all other provisions herein. 294 

 

3. Clarifications that do not substantively alter the terms or spirit of this Agreement but serve to clear up 295 

ambiguities of this Agreement. 296 

 

4. Changes to prescribed meeting times and places as long as the opportunity for public involvement and 297 

comment is not impaired. 298 

 

ARTICLE 17. LOCAL MATCH PAYMENTS 299 
 

 

The necessary local funds needed for the MPO planning dollars from the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), 300 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and State of Illinois – Department of Transportation (IDOT) shall be split (by 301 

percentage) among the local and county units of government on the MPO Policy Committee based upon the most 302 

recent urbanized area population and their respected percentage for the Rockford Urbanized Area according to the 303 

Census of Population issued by the Bureau of the Census.  IDOT and the Rockford Mass Transit District shall be 304 

exempt from these local funds payments.  The total local fund amount shall be determined by the RPC Executive 305 

Director in consultation with the MPO Policy Committee when the annual Unified Work Program is prepared and 306 

adopted by the same Committee.  The RPC Executive Director shall prepare quarterly invoices to each of the local 307 

and county units of government and transmit formal invoices.  All agencies shall comply with the Governmental 308 

Prompt Payment Act.  Failure to submit payment to the MPO in a timely manner shall be reported to the Policy 309 

Committee.  Suspension or termination of membership shall be decided by the Policy Committee on a case by case 310 

basis. 311 

 

 

ATTESTATION 312 



MPO Cooperative Agreement    

 

9 

 

 

The undersigned officials hereby a t t e s t  t h a t  they have been duly authorized by their legislative authorities 313 

to enter into this Agreement. 314 

 

 
 

 315 

        Frank Haney, Winnebago County Board Chairman, Winnebago County    Date 

 

 

 

 316 

        Karl Johnson, Boone County Board Chairman, Boone County     Date 

 

 

 

 317 

Steve Johnson, Mayor, Village of Machesney Park     Date 

 

 

 

 318 

Thomas McNamara, Mayor, City of Rockford      Date 

 

 

 

 319 

Greg Jury, Mayor, City of Loves Park       Date 

 

 

 

 320 

Mike Chamberlain, Mayor, City of Belvidere      Date 

 

 

 

 321 

Herbert Johnson, Board Chairman, Rockford Mass Transit District    Date 

 

 

 

 322 

Kevin Marchek, Director, Illinois Department of Transportation, Region 2   Date 

 

 323 



 

FINANCE 
COMMITTEE 



Sponsored by: Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2018 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 
CHERYL WHIPPLE VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Cheryl Whipple for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of River 
Bluff Nursing Home; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of  $50,000 for the settlement and funding of 
the Medicare set aside in the amount of $60,622.00, and a payment of the medical lien in the 
amount of $1,600.00 (total of $112,222.00) for a Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Cheryl 
Whipple versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Cheryl Whipple while 
in the employment of River Bluff Nursing Home by payment of the amount of $50,000 for the 
settlement and funding of the Medicare set aside in the amount of $60,622.00, and a payment of 
the medical lien in the amount of $1,600.00 (total of $112,222.00) for permanent disability for a 
Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, 
Director of Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 



2 
 

 
 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 
AGREE  DISAGREE 

 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



Sponsored by: Ted Biondo, Committee Chairman 
 

COUNTY BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 6, 2018 

 
 

 
R E S O L U T I O N 

of the 
COUNTY BOARD OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
Submitted by:  Finance Committee 
 

2018 CR 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT OF A CLAIM 
AGAINST THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ENTITLED 
TIMOTHY HILTON VERSUS WINNEBAGO COUNTY 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the County of Winnebago, Illinois, is involved in having claims asserted 
against it by Timothy Hilton for injuries allegedly sustained while in the employment of the 
Highway Department; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Plaintiff has offered to settle the above claim against the County of 
Winnebago for consideration payable in the amount of  $52,972.13 for the settlement  funding 
for a Workers Compensation case; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, counsel for the County of Winnebago recommends that it is in the best 
interest of the County of Winnebago to settle the above referenced claims upon the terms of the 
proposed settlement. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the County Board of the County of 
Winnebago, Illinois that it does hereby authorize settlement of the claims entitled Timothy 
Hilton versus County of Winnebago for injuries allegedly sustained by Timothy Hilton while in 
the employment of the Highway Department by payment of the amount of $52,972.13 for the 
settlement for permanent disability for a Workers Compensation case. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect 
immediately upon it adoption. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Clerk of the County Board is hereby 
authorized to prepare and deliver certified copies of this Resolution to the County Auditor, 
Director of Purchasing, Human Resources Director, and Williams & McCarthy. 
 
 
 



2 
 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 
The above and foregoing Resolution was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 

 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 



FIN #3 Ordinance Pension Bonds.doc 
0000400 

MINUTES of a regular public meeting of the County Board of The 
County of Winnebago, Illinois, held in the County Board Room 
located in the Winnebago County Courthouse, 400 West State 
Street, Rockford, Illinois, in said County at 6:00 o’clock P.M., on 
the 6th day of September, 2018. 

 * * * 

The Chairman called the meeting to order and directed the County Clerk to call the roll. 

Upon the roll being called, Frank Haney, the Chairman, and the following County Board 

Members were physically present at said location: _____________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

The following County Board Members were allowed by a majority of the members of the 

County Board in accordance with and to the extent allowed by rules adopted by the County 

Board to attend the meeting by video or audio conference: _______________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

No County Board Member was not permitted to attend the meeting by video or audio 

conference. 

The following County Board Members were absent and did not participate in the meeting 

in any manner or to any extent whatsoever: ___________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Chairman announced that in order to fund all or a portion of the County’s unfunded 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) liability, including prepayment of, and providing a 

budget stabilization fund for, such liability, the County Board would consider the adoption of an 



-2- 

ordinance authorizing the issuance of general obligation alternate bonds and directing the 

publication of a notice setting forth the determination of the County Board to issue such bonds. 

Whereupon County Board Member _____________ presented and the County Clerk read 

by title an ordinance as follows, copies of which were provided to everyone in attendance at said 

meeting who requested a copy: 



 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 

AN ORDINANCE authorizing the issuance by The County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, of General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$50,000,000 for the purpose of funding all or a portion of the 
unfunded Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) liability of 
said County, including prepayment of, and providing a budget 
stabilization fund for, such liability. 

 * * * 

WHEREAS, The County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”), is a duly organized and 

existing unit of local government created and existing under the provisions of the laws of the 

State of Illinois, and is now operating under the provisions of the Counties Code of the State of 

Illinois, as amended; and 

WHEREAS, in order to fund all or a portion of the County’s unfunded Illinois Municipal 

Retirement Fund (IMRF) liability, including prepayment of, and providing a budget stabilization 

fund for, such liability, the County Board of the County (the “Board”) has determined that it is 

necessary and in the best interests of the County that the County borrow an amount not to exceed 

$50,000,000 and, in evidence thereof, issue alternate bonds in an aggregate principal amount not 

to exceed $50,000,000, all in accordance with the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the 

State of Illinois, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the revenue source that will be pledged to the payment of the principal of and 

interest on the alternate bonds will be taxes levied upon all taxable property in the County for 

Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund purposes, to the fullest extent permitted by law, including 

Section 7 of the Pension Code of the State of Illinois, as amended (the “Pledged Revenues”); 

and 

WHEREAS, if the Pledged Revenues are insufficient to pay the alternate bonds, ad valorem 

property taxes upon all taxable property in the County without limitation as to rate or amount are 

authorized to be extended to pay the principal of and interest on the alternate bonds: 



-2- 

NOW, THEREFORE, It Is Hereby Ordained by the County Board of The County of 

Winnebago, Illinois, as follows: 

 Section 1. Incorporation of Preambles.  The Board hereby finds that all of the recitals 

contained in the preambles to this Ordinance are full, true and correct and does incorporate them 

into this Ordinance by this reference. 

 Section 2. Determination To Issue Bonds.  In order to pay all or a portion of the 

County’s outstanding unfunded IMRF liability, including prepayment of, and providing a budget 

stabilization fund for, such liability, it is necessary and in the best interests of the County that the 

County borrow an amount not to exceed $50,000,000 and, in evidence thereof, alternate bonds of 

the County are hereby authorized to be issued and sold in an aggregate principal amount not to 

exceed $50,000,000 (the “Bonds”). 

 Section 3. Publication.  This Ordinance, together with a notice in the statutory form, 

shall be published in the Rockford Register Star, being a newspaper having general circulation in 

the County.  If no petition, signed by not less than 6,913 electors of the County (said number of 

electors being equal to 7.5% of the registered voters in the County) asking that the question of 

the issuance of the Bonds be submitted to referendum, is filed with the County Clerk of the 

County (the “County Clerk”) within thirty (30) days after the date of the publication of this 

Ordinance and said notice, then the Bonds shall be authorized to be issued.  A petition form shall 

be provided by the County Clerk to any individual requesting one. 

 Section 4. Additional Ordinances.  If no petition meeting the requirements of 

applicable law is filed during the petition period hereinabove referred to, then the Board may 

adopt additional ordinances or proceedings supplementing or amending this Ordinance providing 

for the issuance and sale of the Bonds, and prescribing all the details of the Bonds, so long as the 

maximum aggregate principal amount of the Bonds as set forth in this Ordinance is not exceeded 



-3- 

and there is no material change in the purposes described herein.  Such additional ordinances or 

proceedings shall in all instances become effective immediately without publication or posting or 

any further act or requirement.  This Ordinance, together with such additional ordinances or 

proceedings, shall constitute complete authority for the County to issue the Bonds in accordance 

with applicable law. 

 Section 5. Severability.  If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this 

Ordinance shall be held invalid, the invalidity of such section, paragraph, clause or provision 

shall not affect any of the other provisions of this Ordinance. 

 Section 6. Repealer and Effective Date.  All ordinances, resolutions or orders, or parts 

thereof, in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance are to the extent of such conflict hereby 

repealed and this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect forthwith upon its adoption. 

PASSED by the County Board of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, this 6th day of 

September, 2018. 

  ____________________________________ 
 Chairman of the County Board of  

The County of Winnebago, Illinois 

ATTEST 

_________________________________ 
County Clerk,  
The County of Winnebago, Illinois 



 

County Board Member _______________________ moved and County Board Member 

_______________________ seconded the motion that said ordinance as presented and read by 

title be adopted. 

After a full discussion thereof, the Chairman directed that the roll be called for a vote 

upon the motion to adopt said ordinance. 

Upon the roll being called, the following County Board Members voted AYE:__________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

The following County Board Members voted NAY: _______________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Whereupon the Chairman declared the motion carried and said ordinance adopted, 

approved and signed the same in open meeting and directed the Clerk to record the same in the 

records of the County Board of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, which was done. 

Other business not pertinent to the adoption of said ordinance was duly transacted at the 

meeting. 

Upon motion duly made, seconded and carried, the meeting was adjourned. 

 ____________________________________ 
County Clerk 



  

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ) 

CERTIFICATION OF ORDINANCE AND MINUTES 

I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified and acting County Clerk 
of The County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”), and as such officer I am the keeper of the 
books, records, files, and journal of proceedings of the County and of the County Board thereof 
(the “Board”). 

I do further certify that the foregoing constitutes a full, true and complete transcript of the 
minutes of the meeting of the Board held on the 6th day of September, 2018, insofar as the same 
relates to Ordinance No. __________ entitled: 

AN ORDINANCE authorizing the issuance by The County of 
Winnebago, Illinois, of General Obligation Bonds (Alternate 
Revenue Source) in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed 
$50,000,000 for the purpose of funding all or a portion of the 
unfunded Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) liability of 
said County, including prepayment of, and providing a budget 
stabilization fund for, such liability. 

a true, correct and complete copy of which said ordinance as presented at said meeting appears in 
the foregoing transcript of the minutes of said meeting. 

I do further certify that the deliberations of the Board on the consideration of said 
ordinance were taken openly, that the vote on the adoption of said ordinance was taken openly, 
that said meeting was held at a specified time and place convenient to the public, that notice of 
said meeting was duly given to all of the news media requesting such notice, that an agenda for 
said meeting was posted at the location where said meeting was held and at the principal office 
of the Board at least 48 hours in advance of the holding of said meeting, that at least one copy of 
said agenda was continuously available for public review during the entire 48-hour period 
preceding said meeting, that a true, correct and complete copy of the agenda as so posted is 
attached hereto as Exhibit A, that said meeting was called and held in strict accordance with the 
provisions of the Counties Code of the State of Illinois, as amended, the Open Meetings Act of 
the State of Illinois, as amended, and the Local Government Debt Reform Act of the State of 
Illinois, as amended, and that the Board has complied with all of the applicable provisions of said 
Code and said Acts and its procedural rules in the consideration of said ordinance. 



-2- 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto affix my official signature and the seal of the County, 
this 6th day of September, 2018. 

 
 
 _________________________________ 
County Clerk, The County of 

Winnebago, Illinois 
[SEAL]



 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ISSUE BONDS 
AND RIGHT TO FILE PETITION 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that pursuant to Ordinance No. _______ (the “Ordinance”), 
adopted by the County Board of The County of Winnebago, Illinois (the “County”), on the 
6th day of September, 2018, the County intends to issue alternate bonds (the “Bonds”) in an 
aggregate principal amount not to exceed $50,000,000 in order to fund all or a portion of the 
County’s Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) liability, including prepayment of, and 
providing a budget stabilization fund for, such liability.  The revenue source that will be pledged 
to the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds will be taxes levied upon all taxable 
property in the County for Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund purposes, to the fullest extent 
permitted by law, including Section 7 of the Pension Code of the State of Illinois, as amended.  If 
this revenue source is insufficient to pay the Bonds, ad valorem property taxes upon all taxable 
property in the County without limitation as to rate or amount are authorized to be extended to 
pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  A complete copy of the Ordinance follows this 
notice. 

NOTICE IS HEREBY FURTHER GIVEN that a petition signed by 6,913 or more electors of the 
County (said number of electors being equal to 7.5% of the registered voters in the County) 
asking that the question of the issuance of the Bonds be submitted to referendum, may be filed 
with the County Clerk of the County (the “County Clerk”) within 30 days after the date of 
publication of the Ordinance and this notice.  If such petition is filed with the County Clerk 
within thirty (30) days after the date of publication of the Ordinance and this notice, an election 
on the proposition to issue the Bonds shall be held on the 26th day of February, 2019, unless no 
voters in the County are scheduled to cast votes for any candidates for nomination for, election to 
or retention in public office at said election, in which case an election on the proposition to issue 
the Bonds shall be held on the 2nd day of April, 2019.  The Circuit Court may declare that an 
emergency referendum should be held prior to either of said election dates pursuant to the 
provisions of Section 2A-1.4 of the Election Code of the State of Illinois, as amended.  If no such 
petition is filed within said thirty (30) day period, then the County shall thereafter be authorized 
to issue the Bonds for the purpose hereinabove provided.  A form of petition is available to any 
individual requesting one at the office of the County Clerk. 

By order of the County Board of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, this 6th day of 
September, 2018. 

Tiana McCall 
County Clerk, The County of Winnebago, 

Illinois 
 



 

STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO ) 

PETITION 

To the County Clerk of The County of Winnebago, Illinois: 

We, the undersigned, being registered voters of The County of Winnebago, Illinois, do hereby request that 
the following proposition be submitted to the voters of said County:  “Shall The County of Winnebago, Illinois, be 
authorized to issue $50,000,000 general obligation alternate bonds in order to fund all or a portion of said County’s 
Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) liability, including prepayment of, and providing a budget stabilization 
fund for, such liability, as described in Ordinance No. _____, adopted by the County Board of said County on the 
6th day of September, 2018, with taxes levied upon all taxable property in said County for Illinois Municipal 
Retirement Fund purposes, to the fullest extent permitted by law, including Section 7 of the Pension Code of the 
State of Illinois, as amended, to be the revenue source to be used to pay the principal of and interest on said bonds, 
unless said revenue source is insufficient to pay said bonds, in which case ad valorem property taxes levied upon all 
taxable property in said County without limitation as to rate or amount are authorized to be extended for such 
purpose?”, to be certified to you and submitted to the electors of said County at the next election at which said 
proposition lawfully may be submitted to said voters: 

   CITY, 
  STREET ADDRESS OR VILLAGE 
 SIGNATURE RURAL ROUTE NUMBER OR TOWN 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 
______________________ ______________________________, ________________, Winnebago County, Illinois 

The undersigned, being first duly sworn, deposes and certifies that he or she is at least 18 years of age, his 
or her residence address is ________________________________ (Street Address), _________________________ 
(City, Village or Town), Winnebago County, Illinois, that he or she is a citizen of the United States of America, that 
the signatures on the foregoing petition were signed in his or her presence and are genuine, that to the best of his or 
her knowledge and belief the persons so signing were at the time of signing said petition registered voters of said 
County and that their respective residences are correctly stated therein. 

 _________________________________ 
Signed and sworn to before me this 
_____ day of ____________, 2018. 

___________________________________ 
Illinois Notary Public 

My commission expires _______________ 

(NOTARY SEAL) 

 

 



 

 

 

 
Respectfully Submitted, 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 

 

AGREE  DISAGREE 
 
 

  

TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

 TED BIONDO, CHAIRMAN 
 
 

GARY JURY 
 
 

 GARY JURY 
 

JOE HOFFMAN  JOE HOFFMAN 
 
 

BURT GERL 
 
 

 BURT GERL 
 

DAVE BOOMER 
 
 

 DAVE BOOMER 
 

STEVE SCHULTZ 
 
 

 STEVE SCHULTZ 
 

JAIME SALGADO 
 
 

 JAIME SALGADO 
 

KEITH MCDONALD  KEITH MCDONALD 
 

The above and foregoing Ordinance was adopted by the County Board of the County of 

Winnebago, Illinois this _____day of ___________________________2018. 

 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 

FRANK HANEY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE COUNTY BOARD 

OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 
 
 
TIANA MCCALL 
CLERK OF THE COUNTY BOARD  
OF THE COUNTY OF WINNEBAGO, ILLINOIS 

 
 
 

 
 



 

BOARD 
APPOINTMENTS 



 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 
It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: September 3, 2018 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
 
Bill LeFevre of Cherry Valley, Illinois, to fill the vacant 3 year term of Gary Maitland who passed 
away. His fulfilment would run from September 2018-May 2020 on the Cherry Valley Fire 
Protection District Board.   
 

About the Cherry Valley Fire Protection District 
Location:  4919 Blackhawk Road, Cherry Valley, IL 
Service Description:  Provide fire emergency, medical and other life safety services to the Village 

of Cherry Valley and Winnebago and Boone Counties 

Board Composition:  Three trustees, appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 
advice and consent of the County Board 

Origin of Entity: Fire Protection District AT (70 ILCS 705/1) 

Property Tax/Funding: 
 

District levies and annual property tax, charges for services and replacement 
tax 
 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plan: 

If applicable 

Compensation: None 

 













 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

xecutive Summary 
Date: August 28, 2018 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Ryan Gordon of Pecatonica, Illinois, 61063 to serve a 6-year term from September 2018 –
March 2020 on the Cherry Valley Cemetery Association Board.  Ryan will be filling the vacant 
spot of his father, Ron Gordon, who passed away. 
   

About the Winnebago County Cherry Valley Cemetery Association 
Location:  2494 Mill Road, Cherry Valley, IL 

 
Service Description:  Administrative, care and maintaining of cemetery formed by the Association. 

 
Board Composition:  Seven (7) members appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with 

advice and consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation N/A 
 

Origin of Entity:  805 ILCS 320/1 Section 1 that any six (6) or more persons may organize a cemetery 
association to be owned, managed and controlled in the manner hereinafter provided 
 

Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

Interment fees and sale of grave plots 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 





 
  

 

 
               404 Elm Street • Room 533 • Rockford, IL 61101 | Website: www.WinCoIL.us 

It is our mission to provide high quality services and promote a safe community for all people in Winnebago County. 

 

Executive Summary 
Date: September 4, 2018 
From: County Board Chairman Frank Haney 
Topic: Board Appointment 
 
State of Illinois Public Act 099-0634 requires disclosure of appointments to local public entities. 
 
County Code Chapter 2, Article II, Division 4, Section 2-88 states, “The chairman shall make all 
appointments to commissions, boards, authorities, or special districts with the advice and consent of the 
county board, or as otherwise provided by law.” 
 
Recommendation: County Board Chairman Frank Haney recommends the following person(s) to serve 
as County appointees. 
…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………. 
Shirley Alberstett of Pecatonica, Illinois, 61063 to serve a 6-year term from June 2018 –
December 2023 on the Howard Union Cemetery District 
 

About the Winnebago County Howard Union Cemetery Association 
Location:  16990 W. Campbell Road, Davis, IL 

 
Service Description:  Administrative, care and maintaining of cemetery formed by the Association. 

 
Board Composition:  Nine members appointed by the Winnebago County Board Chairman with advice and 

consent of the County Board 
 

Compensation N/A 
 

Origin of Entity:  805 ILCS 320/1, Section 1 that any six (6) or more persons may organize a cemetery 
association to be owned, managed and controlled in the manner hereinafter provided 
 

Property 
Tax/Funding:  
 

Interment fees and sale of grave plots 

Consolidation/ 
Dissolution Plans:  

If applicable 

 


	Revised Agenda
	Chairman's Service Excellence Award
	Announcement & Communications
	Chairman's Report
	Administrator's Report
	Consent Agenda
	Public Works Committee
	18-026 Resolution
	Zoning Committee
	Economic Development Committee
	Res Authorizing Execution of an Agreement with Bergstrom
	Agreement 
	Summary
	Operations & Administrative Committee
	Res Establishing Date, Time, & Location of Each Cty. Brd. Mtg.
	Res Authorizing Chairman to Execute IGA (WinGIS)
	Res Authorizing Chairman to Execute Cooperative Agreement (RMAP)
	Finance Committee
	Res Authorizing Settlement of a Claim - Cheryl Whipple
	Res Authorizing Settlement of a Claim - Timothy Hilton
	Ordinance 
	Board Appointment
	William LeFevre - Executive Summary
	Letters & Resume
	Ryan Gordon - Executive Summary
	Support Letter
	Shirley Alberstett - Executive Summary



